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ABOUT ISF LIMITED 
 

ISF Limited is an RBI-registered Non-Banking Financial Company 
(NBFC) with a rich legacy of 37 years, serving diverse capital 
requirements of individuals and businesses across India. As one of 
North India’s oldest NBFCs, we are proudly listed on the Bombay Stock 
Exchange. 
 

At ISF, we focus on multiple lending products facilitating business 
growth of micro and small enterprises though a digitally enabled 
partnership approach. Few of our offerings include EV Loans & Battery 
financing, Invoice Discounting and SME Business financing. With 
technology at the heart of our services, we are paving the way for a 
future-ready, digital-first approach to lending. 

 

 

JOURNEY SO FAR 
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NOTICE OF 37TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty-Seventh Annual General Meeting of the members of ISF 
Ltd. (‘ISF’ or the ‘Company’) will be held on Saturday, 27th day of September, 2025 at 04:00 
PM IST through Video Conferencing (‘VC’)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (‘OAVM’) 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘e-AGM’) to transact the following: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2025, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vishal Dang (DIN- 07971525), who retires by 
rotation in terms of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3. Regularization/ Appointment of Mr. Anil Kumar Verma (DIN: 10455548) as a Whole-
time Director of the Company. 

 

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 

 
 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 read with 

Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and approval of the Board of Director of the Company, subject to such other 
approvals, if any, as may be required, the consent of the members be and are hereby 
accorded for the regularization and appointment of Mr. Anil Kumar Verma (DIN: 
10455548) as Whole-time Director of the Company, who was appointed as Additional 
Director of the Company by the Board of Directors w.e.f. 09th July, 2025, and who holds 
office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting under Section 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, be and is hereby appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company for a period 
of five years w.e.f. 29.08.2025, whose office shall be liable to retire by rotation.” 

 
 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or Company Secretary of the Company 

be and are hereby severally and/or jointly authorised to do all such acts and take all such 
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
By order of the Board of Directors 
For ISF Limited 
 
SD/- 
Anjali Raj  
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer          Date: 29.08.2025 
Membership No.: A77251                      Place: Delhi 
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Notes:  
 
1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) allowed conducting Annual General Meeting 

(“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 
and dispensed physical presence of the Members at a common venue. Accordingly, MCA 
issued General Circular No. 09/2024 Dated:19.09.2024 read with Circular No. 09/2023 
Dated: 25.09.2023 read with circular No. 10/2022 dated: December 28, 2022 read with 
circular 2/2022 dated: 5th May, 2022 read with Circular No. 20/2020 dated: 5th May, 2020 
read with Circular No. 14/2020 dated: 8th April, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated: 13th 
April, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated: 13th January, 2021, Circular No. 19/2021 dated: 
8th December, 2021 (hereinafter collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India(“SEBI”) vide Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/133 Dated: October 3, 2024, SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2023/0164 dated: 
06th October, 2023, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated: January 05th 2023, 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1CIR/P/2020/79 dated: 12th May, 2020, 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated: 15th January, 2021 and 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated: 13th May, 2022 (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as SEBI Circulars) prescribing the procedures and manner of conducting the 
AGM through VC/OAVM. In terms of the said Circulars, the 37th AGM of the Members 
will be held through VC/OAVM mode. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the 
AGM through VC/OAVM only. The detailed procedure for participating in the Meeting 
through VC/OAVM is given herein below. 

 
2. The Company has appointed Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, to provide the 

VC/ OAVM facility for conducting the AGM and for voting through remote e-voting or 
through e-voting at the AGM. The procedure for participating in the meeting through 
VC/OAVM is explained in the notes and is also available on the website of the Company 
at https://isflimited.in/. 

 
3. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is 
not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint 
authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there 
at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will 
be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include 
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis. 

 
5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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6. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)  the 
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and 
the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company 
is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic 
means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-
Voting system as well as e-voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 
7. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
https://isflimited.in/annual-general-meeting.html. The Notice can also be accessed from 
the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com respectively and 
the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote 
e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com and on the website of Skyline Financial 
Services Pvt Ltd (RTA) at www.skylinerta.com. 

 
8. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time. 
 

9. SCRUTINISER FOR E-VOTING: Mr. Anuj Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary and 
Proprietor of M/s Anuj Gupta & Associates; has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
10. SUBMISSION OF QUESTIONS / QUERIES PRIOR TO AGM: 
 
a) For ease of conduct of AGM, Members who wish to ask questions/express their views on 

the items of the businesses to be transacted at the meeting are requested to write to the 
Company’s email ID info@isflimited.in, at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the AGM 
i.e. by 4.00 p.m. (IST) on Thursday, 25th September, 2025, mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, registered email ID, mobile number, etc. The queries may 
be raised precisely and in brief to enable the Company to answer the same suitably 
depending on the availability of time at the AGM. 

 

b) Members can also post their questions during AGM through the “Ask A Question”/ Raise 
hand tab, which is available in the VC/OAVM Facility as well as in live webcast facility. 

 

 

 

The Company will, at the AGM, endeavour to address the queries received till 4.00 P.M. (IST) 
Thursday, 25th September, 2025 from those Members who have sent queries from their 
registered email IDs. Please note that Members’ questions will be answered only if they 
continue to hold shares as on the cut-off date. 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: - 

The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, 24th September, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and 
ends on Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register 
of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 20th September, 2025, 
may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion 
to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, 
being 20th September, 2025. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglog
in.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID, 8-digit Client 
Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP 
received on registered email id/mobile number and click on 
login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 
a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access 
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
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provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 
is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register 
Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting.  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to 
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 
username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On 
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clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting 
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the 
user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
& New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where 
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
toll free no. 1800-21-09911 
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is 
IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** 
then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the 
company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 
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5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 
below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 
password to login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 
company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf 
file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 
send a request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 
the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by 
selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in 
active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining 
virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join 
Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” 
and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required 
to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
csanujgupta@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional 
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload 
Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 
reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. 
Pallavi Mhatre (Senior Manager) at evoting@nsdl.com  
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 
email to info@isflimited.in. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + 
CLID or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to info@isflimited.in. If you are an Individual 
shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 
meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned 
documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and 
email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM 
ARE AS UNDER: - 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions 
mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote 
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for 
Remote e-voting. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM 
ARE AS UNDER: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps 
mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can 
see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. 
You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The 
link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN 
of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User 
ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may 
retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the 
notice to avoid last minute rush.  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed 
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-
Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, 
email id, mobile number at info@isflimited.in and +91-9105535135 . The same will be 
replied by the company suitably. 

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed 
to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Business mentioned in the 
accompanying Notice: 

ITEM NO 3. Regularization/ Appointment of Mr. Anil Kumar Verma (DIN: 10455548) as a Whole-
time Director of the Company. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 09th July, 2025, appointed Mr. Anil Kumar 
Verma (DIN: 10455548) as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 09th July, 2025, 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Articles of Association of the Company. 

Further, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board 
has appointed Mr. Anil Kumar Verma as Whole-Time Director of the Company for a period of five (05) 
years with effect from 29.08.2025, subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing General 
Meeting. 

The terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, are in accordance with Sections 196, 
197, 198, 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, 
and rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.  

Additional information in respect of Mr. Anil Kumar Verma, pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standards on General 
Meetings (SS-2), is given at Annexure to this Notice. 
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Annexure to the Notice 

Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings. 

Name Mr. Vishal Dang Mr. Anil Kumar Verma 
Director Identification Number (DIN) 07971525 10455548 
Designation/ category of the Director Whole- time Director (Executive) Whole- time Director (Executive) 
Age 34 Years 50 Years 
Qualifications MBA (Finance and IT) B. Sc. (Hons.), PGDM 
Experience (including expertise in specific 
functional area) 

Having an experience of more 
than 11 years in Finance 
Industry. 

Having more than 23 years of experience 
in the fields of commercial banking, 
SME lending, portfolio risk 
management, and fintech-driven B2B 
lending, having worked across India 
and Tanzania. 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment/ 
Reappointment  

As per the resolution passed 
by the shareholders. 

As per the resolution passed by the 
shareholders. 

Remuneration last drawn (Including 
sitting fees, if any) 

INR 6,00,000 INR 12,00,000 

Date of first appointment on the Board 08th May, 2020 Mr. Verma was appointed as Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company 
w.e.f. 03/08/2024, thereafter appointed 
as an Additional Director w.e.f. 09th July, 
2025. 

Shareholding in the Company as on date 
of notice 

71,84,910 
Equity shares 

NIL 

Relationship with other Directors / Key 
Managerial Personnel  

Not Applicable Not related to any Director or KMP 

Number of meetings of the Board 
attended during the year 

06 Board Meetings 4 Board Meetings. He attended Board 
Meetings as CEO of the Company. 

Directorships of other Boards as on March 
31, 2025 

N.A. N.A. 

Membership / Chairmanship of 
Committees of other Boards as on March 
31, 2025. (Inclusive of Stakeholder and 
Relationship Committee and Audit 
Committee)  

Not Applicable N.A. 

The Justification for choosing the 
appointees for appointment as 
Independent Directors 

N.A. N.A. 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For ISF Limited 

 

SD/- 

Anjali Raj 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer          Date: 29.08.2025  
Membership No.: A77251            Place: Delhi 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

To, 

The Shareholders, 
ISF LIMITED 
 
The Board of Directors of your Company are pleased to present the 37th (Thirty Seventh) 
Annual Report on the business operations and state of affairs of your Company together with 
the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025. 

COMPANY OVERVIEW 

Your Company (ISF Limited) was incorporated on 10th August, 1988, and has its registered 
office at Khasra No. 10/2, Samalka, New Delhi, Gurgaon Road, South West Delhi, New Delhi, 
India- 110037. It is registered as a Non-deposit taking, Non-Systemically Important Non- 
Banking Financial Company vide the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) registration number B- 
14.00761 dated 25th April 2011.  

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 

The Financial performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 is 
summarized below: 

Particulars 2024-25 (in Lacs) 2023-24 (in Lacs) 
Revenue from Operations 178.43 202.20 
Other Income 0.40 0.13 
Total Income 178.83 202.33 
Total Expense 179.70 294.15 
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (0.88) (91.82) 
Tax Expense:   
Current 0.00 0.00 
Earlier Year 0.00 (0.07) 
Deferred Tax 0.23 18.00 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (0.65) (73.88) 
EPS (0.0007)  (0.0778) 

 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS & STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS           
 

The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of 
India (RBI). During the financial year under review, the Company recorded a turnover of ₹ 
178.43 Lacs against ₹ 202.20 Lacs in the previous year and the Company has incurred loss of ₹ 
0.65 Lacs as compared to loss of ₹ 73.88 Lacs in the previous financial year. The management 
of the Company is putting their best efforts to improve the performance of the Company. 
 
The reduction in loss underscores the impact of strategic initiatives undertaken by the 
management, including cost rationalisation measures, enhanced operational efficiencies, and 
focused efforts towards strengthening the core business segments. The management is 
continuously striving towards improving operational performance and expect the business to 
perform well in the forthcoming year. 
 



                                                                      19 

TRANSFERS TO RESERVE FUND 
 

Under Section 45-IC (1) of Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) Act, 1934, non-banking financial 
companies (‘NBFCs’) are required to transfer a sum not less than 20% of its net profit every 
year to reserve fund before declaration of any dividend. Since the company has incurred the 
losses, accordingly, in the year 2024-25 (the 'Company' or ‘ISF’) has not transferred any sum 
to its reserve fund. 
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year 
2024-25. 
 
 

SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE 
 

At present the securities of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 
and the Company has been regular in paying the listing fees and other statutory payments to 
the Stock Exchange and other intermediaries.  
 
During the year under review, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 
60,00,00,000/- divided into 60,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each.  
 
Subscribed, Issued and Paid-up Capital of the Company is Rs. 9,50,00,000 divided into 
9,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each. 
 
During the year under review, there is no change in the capital structure of the Company. 
 
 

DIVIDEND 
 

The Board of Directors have decided not to recommend any dividend for the financial year 
ending March 31, 2025, due to the Company incurring a loss during this period. The Board 
believes that retaining the available funds is in the long-term interest of the Company, as it 
will help stabilize our financial position and support future growth efforts. 
 
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 
PROTECTION FUND 
 

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no 
dividend declared and paid last year. 
 
DEPOSITS 
 

Being a non-deposit taking Company, your Company has not accepted any deposits within 
the meaning of the provisions of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies 
Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the Company. Further, the Company shall not 
accept deposits from public without obtaining prior approval from the Reserve Bank of India. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY  
 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company, that have occurred between end of the Financial Year to which the Financial 
Statements relate and date of this report. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 
 

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture within the meaning 
of Section 2(87) and 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE U/S 186 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

The Company, being an NBFC registered with the Reserve Bank of India and engaged in the 
business of giving loans in ordinary course of its business, is exempt from complying with the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Act with respect to loans and guarantees. Accordingly, the 
disclosures of the loans given as required under the aforesaid Section have not been made in 
this Report. 
 
However, the particulars of Loans, Guarantees, and Investments have been disclosed in the 
Financial Statements read together with Notes annexed to and forming an integral part of the 
Annual Report. 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED 
PARTIES 
 

There are no materially significant related party transactions during the year under review 
made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, or other designated persons which may 
have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Thus, disclosure in Form 
AOC- 2 is not required. However, the disclosure of transactions with related party for the year, 
as per Accounting Standard-18 Related Party Disclosures is given in the Financial Statements 
read together with Notes annexed to and forming an integral part of the Annual Report. 
 
The Policy on dealing with related party transactions, as approved by the Board may be 
accessed on the Company’s website at the link   https://www.isflimited.in/policies.html. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 

Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to constitute a 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and undertake CSR activities, if it meets the 
specified financial thresholds. However, the provisions relating to CSR are not applicable to 
the Company for the year under review, and hence no CSR Committee has been constituted. 
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of Directors, to the best of 
their knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of 
the Company for FY 2024-25; 

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

(f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes (appointment or 
otherwise) in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period 
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. As on 31st March, 
2025, the Composition of the Board is as under: 

Name of the Director DIN Category  Date of 
Appointment 

Gayathri Muttur Nagaraj 06742638 Independent Director 24/06/2022 
Vishal Dang 07971525 Whole-time director 08/05/2020 
Hargovind Sachdev 08105319 Independent Director 24/06/2022 
Bhupendra Kaushik 07016552 Independent Director 24/08/2023 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company provides strategic guidance and oversight in the 
conduct of Company’s affairs.  As of March 31, 2025, the Board consists of four Directors, 
including one Executive Director and three Non-Executive (Independent) Directors, reflecting 
an optimal balance. 

Appointment of Director 

During the year under review, no changes took place in the Board of Directors. 

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, Mr. Anil Kumar Verma (DIN: 10455548) was 
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company on 09th July, 2025, hereby recommended 
for appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
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Declaration by Independent Director 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act the independent directors have submitted 
declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) 
of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder. There has been no change in the circumstances 
affecting their status as independent directors of the Company. 

Certificate of non- disqualification of Directors 

All the Directors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as 
Directors in terms of Section 164 of the Act, and are not debarred from holding the office of 
Director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other such authority. None of the Directors of the 
Company are related to each other. Your Company has obtained a certificate from a Company 
Secretary in practice confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies 
by Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”)/Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) or any 
such statutory authority. The same forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure III. 

Policies on appointment of Directors and Remuneration 

The Company has in place a Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with 
the provision of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Committee has formulated a policy on Director's appointment and remuneration 
including recommendation of remuneration of the key managerial personnel including senior 
management and other employees, composition and the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and the policy is available 
on the website of the Company i.e., https://isflimited.in/assets/img/policies/16.pdf. 

Performance evaluation at Board and Independent Directors’ Meetings 

In line with the provisions of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder read with the relevant provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation 
of its own performance, Board Committees and individual Directors. The performance of the 
Board of Directors and its Committees were evaluated on various parameters such as 
structure, composition, experience, performance of specific duties and obligations, quality of 
decision making and overall effectiveness. The performance of individual Directors was 
evaluated on parameters, such as meeting attendance, participation and contribution and 
independent judgment. 

The Board members noted from time to time the suggestions/ inputs of Independent 
Directors, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and also discussed various 
initiatives to further improve the Board effectiveness. 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors held on 03.08.2024 performance of non-
independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the 
Chairman was evaluated. 
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Key Managerial Personnel 

Mr. Niraj Kumar Chatri resigned from the post of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the 
Company with effect from May 22, 2024. The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 
03, 2024 appointed Mr. Anil Kumar Verma, as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the 
Company on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee with 
effect from August 03, 2024. 

Ms. Manisha Saxena, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company resigned 
from the post of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer with effect from December 23, 
2024. The Board of Directors in its meeting held on February 11, 2025 placed on record their 
appreciation for the assistance, guidance and Services provided by her during her tenure as 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company. 

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, Ms. Anjali Raj was appointed as the Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee with effect from 09th July, 2025. 
 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
 

During the financial year (2024-25), the Board of Directors met Six (06) times. The meetings 
were conducted in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-1 (SS-
1) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review, the meetings were held on 30/04/2024, 30/05/2024, 
03/08/2024, 31/08/2024, 11/11/2024 and 11/02/2025. The maximum gap between two 
consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days. 

The details of the Meetings are as follows: 

S. 
No. 

Name of the 
Director 

Designation No of board Meetings held 
during his/her tenure as 
Director in the year 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 
during the year 

1. Mr. Vishal Dang Whole-time 
Director 

6 6 

2. Ms. Gayathri 
Muttur Nagaraj 

Independent 
Director 

6 6 

3. Mr. Hargovind 
Sachdev 

Independent 
Director 

6 6 

4. Mr. Bhupendra 
Kaushik  

Independent 
Director 

6 6 

 

The 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 28th September, 2024. 

 
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 

The Company has constituted various Committees of the Board as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. The various types of Committees are as follow:  
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1. Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee comprises of Four (4) Members as on 31st March, 2025.  

S. No. Name of the Member 
 

DIN Designation in the Committee 

1. Mr. Hargovind Sachdev  08105319 Member & Chairperson 
(Independent Director) 
 

2. Ms. Gayathri Muttur Nagaraj 06742638 Member (Independent Director) 
 

3. Mr. Vishal Dang 07971525 Member (Whole Time Director) 
 

4. Mr. Bhupendra Kaushik  07016552 Member (Independent Director) 
 

 

During the year under review, the Committee met Six (06) times. The details of the Meeting 
held during the year ended March 31, 2025 along with the attendance of Directors are as 
follows: 

S. 
No. 

Date of 
Meeting 

Total Number of members of 
the Committee associated as 
on the date of meeting 

Attendance 
Numbers of 
Directors Attended 

 
% of Attendance 

1. 30.04.2024 4 4 100 
2. 30.05.2024 4 4 100 
3. 03.08.2024 4 4 100 
4. 31.08.2024 4 4 100 
5. 11.11.2024 4 4 100 
6. 11.02.2025 4 4 100 

 

The committee, inter alia, reviewed quarterly and annual financial statements, internal audit 
reports, and adequacy of internal control systems. In case any person requires more 
information/ details regarding the Audit Committee the person may access the Company’s 
website at the link: https://isflimited.in/assets/img/policies/10.pdf  

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three (3) Members as on 31st 
March, 2025. 

S. No. Name of the Member DIN Designation in the Committee 
1. Ms. Gayathri Muttur Nagaraj 06742638 Member & Chairperson (Independent 

Director) 
2. Mr. Hargovind Sachdev 08105319 Member (Independent Director) 
3. Mr. Bhupendra Kaushik 07016552 Member (Independent Director) 

 

During the year under review, the Committee met once and all members of the Committee 
were present in the meeting held on 03/08/2024. It recommended appointment of Key 
Managerial Personnel and reviewed remuneration of other Key Managerial Personnel. 
Nomination & Remuneration Policy is uploaded on the website of the Company i.e., 
https://isflimited.in/assets/img/policies/16.pdf  

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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The major terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee include: 

- Consideration & Resolution of the grievances of security holders of the Company; 

- Reviewing of Transfer / Transmission requests / Demat / Remat requests of the   
shareholders and issuance of duplicate share certificate, if any. 

 

Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on 31st March, 2025 is as follows: 

S. No. Name of the Member DIN Designation in the Committee 
1. Mr. Hargovind Sachdev 08105319 Member & Chairperson 

(Independent Director) 
2. Ms. Gayathri Muttur 

Nagaraj 
06742638 Member (Independent Director) 

3. Mr. Vishal Dang 07971525 Member (Whole Time Director) 
4. Mr. Bhupendra Kaushik 07016552 Member (Independent Director) 

 

 

During the year under review, the Committee met Three (03) times. The details of the Meeting 
held during the year ended March 31, 2025 along with the attendance of Directors are as 
follows: 

S. No. Date of Meeting Total Number of 
members of the 
Committee associated as 
on the date of meeting 

Attendance 
 
Numbers of 
Directors 
Attended 

 
% of Attendance 

1. 12.04.2024 4 4 100 
2. 11.07.2024 4 4 100 
3. 14.10.2024 4 4 100 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING 
 

The Independent Directors met on 03rd August, 2024, without the attendance of Non- 
Independent Directors and members of the Management. The Independent Directors 
reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, the 
performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive 
Director and Non- Executive Directors and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of 
flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for 
the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV, following are the 
Independent Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2025: 

S. No. Name of the Director DIN Designation 
1. Mr. Hargovind Sachdev 08105319 Independent Director 
2. Ms. Gayathri Muttur Nagaraj 06742638 Independent Director 
3. Mr. Bhupendra Kaushik 07016552 Independent Director 

 
 
 
 
 



                                                                      26 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES U/S 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) 
and (3) of Chapter XIII, the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the relevant details are furnished below: 

Name of the Director/ 
Employee 

Vishal Dang Vijay Gupta Anil Kumar Verma 

Designation Whole-Time 
Director 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer 

Remuneration 
received 

INR 6,00,000 INR 4,14,000 INR 12,00,000 

Nature of employment, 
whether contractual or 
otherwise 

Permanent 
employee 

In Full time 
Employment 

In Full time 
Employment 

Qualifications and 
experience of the 
employee; 

- - - 

Date of commencement 
of employment 

08.05.2020 27.05.2023 03.08.2024 

The age of such 
employee 

34 60 50 

The last employment 
held by such employee 
before joining the 
Company 

- - - 

The percentage of 
equity shares held by 
the employee in the 
Company 

7.56% - - 

Whether any such 
employee is a relative of 
any director 

- - - 

 

Notes: 

1. The confirmed employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March 2025- 09 employees  
2. Median remuneration of employees of the Company during FY 2024-2025 was INR 6.00 Lacs p.a. 

AUDITORS 
 

 Statutory Auditor 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder, the Statutory Auditor of the Company, M/s VSSA & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 012421N) having Regd. Office at A- 1/255, 
Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi-110029 was appointed for the second term by the members at 
the 34th Annual General Meeting to hold office until the conclusion of the 39th Annual General 
Meeting. 

The notes on accounts referred to in the auditors’ report are self-explanatory and therefore 
does not require any further comments by the Board of Directors. There are no qualifications 
or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any clarification or explanation. 
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During the year under review, the Company has not reported any fraud mentioned under 
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 Secretarial Auditor 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, M/s Anuj Gupta & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed as Secretarial Auditors for the financial year 
2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 is 
annexed herewith marked as “Annexure-II” to this Report. 

There is qualification remark on vacancy of Company secretary and Compliance Officer which 
require clarification or explanation. 

The Board has noted the observation of the Secretarial Auditor regarding the vacancy in the 
office of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. The position became vacant on 23rd 
December, 2024 upon the resignation of Ms. Manisha Saxena and was required to be filled 
within three months i.e., by 22nd March, 2025. The appointment was not made within the 
prescribed period, resulting in non- compliance of 09 days up to 31st March, 2025. The 
Company has since regularised the position by appointing Ms. Anjali Raj on 09th July, 2025. 

 Internal Auditor 

In terms of Section 138 of the Act and Rules made there under, M/s Sapra Sharma & Associates 
LLP, Chartered Accountants were continued their Office as an Internal Auditors for the 
financial year 2024-25, for consecutive 3 years with effect from 16.09.2022. 

Subsequent to the end of financial year, M/s Sapra Sharma & Associates LLP, Chartered 
Accountants re- appointed as an Internal Auditor for a further period of 3 years with effect 
from 29.08.2025. 

RBI REGULATIONS 
 

The Company has complied with all the applicable regulations of RBI as on March 31, 2025. 
The Company has duly filed all returns in accordance with Master Direction- Non-Banking 
Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

As per SEBI Listing Regulations, Management Discussion and Analysis are attached, which 
form part of this report annexed herewith at Annexure I. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM  

 

According to Section 134 (5) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the term Internal Financial Control 
(IFC) means the policies and procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, 
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial 
information. 

The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate Internal Financial Control System 
which ensures that all the assets are safeguarded and protected and the transactions are 
authorized, recorded and reported correctly. 



                                                                      28 

To further strengthen the internal control process, the Company has developed the very 
comprehensive compliance management tool to drill down the responsibility of the 
compliance from top management to executive. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 

The particulars as per the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of 
energy, technology absorption is as under: 

(A) Conservation of Energy 
 

Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy  
N.A. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 

sources of energy 
The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s 

 
(B) Technology Absorption 

 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption: N.A. 
 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 
import substitution: N.A. 

 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial year)- 

(a) the details of technology imported  
 
N.A. 

(b) the year of import 
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed 
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not 

taken place, and the reasons thereof 
 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: N.A. 

(C) Foreign Exchange earnings and Outgo 

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year- NIL 

The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows- NIL  

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, every Listed Company shall establish a vigil 
mechanism (Whistle Blower mechanism). In pursuance to the provisions of Section 177(9) & 
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy for Directors and 
employees to report genuine concerns or grievances about unethical behaviour, actual or 
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct has been established and 
approved by Board. 

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent 
manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, integrity and ethical behaviour. 

The Vigil Mechanism– cum– Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company 
at the link: https://isflimited.in/assets/img/policies/19.pdf 



                                                                      29 

The following is a summary of Protected Disclosures received and disposed off during the 
year 2024-25: 

No. of Protected Disclosures received: NIL 

No of Protected Disclosures disposed off: NIL 

The Audit Committee oversee the Vigil Mechanism of the Company. The employees of the 
Company have the right to report their concern/grievance to the Audit Committee constituted 
by the Board of Directors to oversee the Vigil mechanism. 

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal 
conduct of business operations. 
 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND 
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 
 

There was no significant order was passed by any regulatory authority or court or tribunal. 
 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

Pursuant to the provision of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Annual Return in form MGT-7 as on March 31, 2024 is available on the website of the 
Company and can be accessed at i.e., https://isflimited.in/investor-relation.html 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS  

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the 
Directors and Senior Executives of the Company. The object of the Code is to conduct the 
Company’s business ethically and with responsibility, integrity, fairness, transparency and 
honesty. The Code sets out a broad policy for one’s conduct in dealing with the Company, 
fellow Directors and with the environment in which the Company operates. 

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 

During the year under review, your Company had less than ten (10) employees. Accordingly, 
pursuant to the provision Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(5)(x) of 
Chapter IX of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement that the company has 
complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 is not applicable to the Company for the financial year 2024-25. 
 

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

Pursuant to the provision of Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the applicable 
Secretarial Standards i.e. SS -1 and SS-2 relating to “Meeting of Board of Directors” and 
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“General Meetings” respectively have been duly complied by your Company during the 
period under review. 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

Pursuant to the provision of Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board had 
developed and implemented an appropriate Risk Management Policy for identifying the 
element of risk which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the company 
and safeguarding the company against those risks. 

INSTANCES OF FRAUD, IF ANY REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS 

 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) and sub-Section (14) of the Companies Act, 2013, as 
amended from time to time, the Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the 
Company during the year under review. 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015, the provisions of Corporate Governance shall not apply, in respect of- 

The listed entity having paid up equity share capital not exceeding Rupees Ten (10) Crores 
and net worth not exceeding Rupees Twenty-five (25) Crores, as on the last day of the previous 
financial year; 

Since the equity share capital and net worth of the company did not exceed Rs. 10 crore and 
Rs. 25 crores respectively, as on the last day of the previous financial year of the Company. 
Accordingly, the reporting requirements like Corporate Governance, Related Party 
Transaction and Business Responsibility Report etc. are not applicable to the Company. 

Therefore, pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the company is not required to mandatorily comply with 
the provisions of corporate governance report to be annexed with the Board Report. 

GENERAL 

 

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following 
matters as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 

a) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board. 
 

b) As per Rule 8 (13) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, during the 
period under review, your Company has not issued Sweat equity shares. 

 
c) As per Rule 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, during the 

period under review, your Company has not issued equity shares under the scheme of 
employee stock option. 
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d) As per Rule 16 (4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 there are no 
voting rights exercised directly or indirectly by the employees in respect of shares held by 
them. 

 
e) As per Rule 14 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, during the period 

under review, your Company has not offered and issued bonus equity shares.  
 

f) During the Financial Year under review, the Company neither filed any application nor 
had any proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 
2016), therefore, it is not applicable to the Company. 

 
g) As per Rule 8(5)(xii) of Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, during the year under review, 

the Company has not any one-time settlement for loans taken from the Banks or Financial 
Institutions, and hence the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at 
the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks 
or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof is not applicable. 
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Annexure- I 

MANAGEMENT AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS 

Global Economy 

The Outlook projects global GDP growth of 3.3% in 2025, up from 3.2% in 2024, and 3.3% in 
2026. 

Inflation in the OECD is expected to ease further, from 5.4% in 2024 to 3.8% in 2025 and 3.0% 
in 2026, supported by the still restrictive stance of monetary policy in most countries. Headline 
inflation has already returned to central bank targets in nearly half of the advanced economies 
and close to 60% of emerging market economies. 

Growth prospects vary significantly across regions. GDP growth in the United States is 
projected to be 2.8% in 2025, before slowing to 2.4% in 2026. In the euro area, the recovery in 
real household incomes, tight labour markets and reductions in policy interest rates continue 
to drive growth. Euro area GDP growth is projected at 1.3% in 2025 and 1.5% in 2026. Growth 
in Japan is projected to expand by 1.5% in 2025 but then decline to 0.6% in 2026. China is 
expected to continue to slow, with GDP growth of 4.7% in 2025 and 4.4% in 2026. 

(Source: https://www.oecd.org/en/about/news/press-releases/2024/12/economic-
outlook-global-growth-to-remain-resilient-in-2025-and-2026-despite-significant-risks.html) 
 

Indian Economy 

Despite recent moderation, India’s economic growth has remained robust, with GDP growth 
of 6% year over year in the first half of 2024/25. Inflation has broadly declined within the 
tolerance band, though food price fluctuations have created some volatility. The financial 
sector has remained resilient, with non-performing loans at multi-year lows. Fiscal 
consolidation has continued, and the current account deficit has remained well contained, 
supported by strong growth in service exports. 
 
Real GDP is expected to grow at 6.5% in 2024/25 and 2025/26, supported by robust growth 
in private consumption on the back of sustained macroeconomic and financial stability. 
Headline inflation is expected to converge to target as food price shocks wane. The current 
account is expected to widen somewhat but remain moderate at -1.3% of GDP in 2025/26. 
Looking ahead, India’s financial sector health, strengthened corporate balance sheets, and 
strong foundation in digital public infrastructure underscore India’s potential for sustained 
medium-term growth and continued social welfare gains. 
 
Risks to the economic outlook are tilted to the downside. Deepening geoeconomic 
fragmentation could affect external demand, while deepening regional conflicts could result 
in oil price volatility, weighing on India’s fiscal position. Domestically, the recovery in private 
consumption and investment may be weaker than expected if real incomes do not recover 
sufficiently. Weather shocks could adversely impact agricultural output, lifting food prices 
and weighing on the recovery in rural consumption. On the upside, deeper implementation 
of structural reforms could boost private investment and employment, raising potential 
growth. 
 
(Source: https://www.imf.org/en/News/Articles/2025/02/26/pr25045-india-imf-
executive-board-concludes-2024-article-iv-consultation-with-india) 
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Industry Structure and Developments 
 

The Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) sector continues to be a critical pillar of India’s 
financial system, complementing banks in extending credit to under-served segments such as 
small businesses, micro-entrepreneurs, and retail borrowers. The sector offers diversified 
financial products, including vehicle finance, MSME loans, housing finance, gold loans, and 
microfinance. 
 
During FY 2024-25, the NBFC sector’s growth trajectory moderated compared to FY 2023-24, 
due to tighter liquidity conditions, elevated borrowing costs, and regulatory interventions 
aimed at strengthening prudential norms. 
 
According to CRISIL Ratings, NBFCs’ overall Assets Under Management (AUM) growth is 
estimated at 15–17% in FY 2024-25, lower than ~23% in FY 2023-24, but still above the decadal 
average of ~14% (FY 2014–2024). ICRA projects (formerly Investment Information and Credit 
Rating of India) NBFC credit growth at 13–15% in FY 2025 and FY 2026, compared to ~17% in 
the last two fiscals. The credit-to-GDP ratio for NBFCs has risen to ~26% in FY 2024-25, up 
from ~16% in FY 2019, underscoring their systemic importance. (Source: 
https://www.crisilratings.com/en/home/newsroom/press-releases/2024/12/nbfcs-asset-
growth-to-moderate-to-15-17percent-over-two-fiscals.html) 
 
Growth was driven by retail segments such as personal loans, vehicle finance, gold loans, and 
MSME lending. The microfinance segment witnessed a slowdown, with NBFC-MFIs reporting 
contraction in AUM due to funding constraints and asset quality pressures, though recovery 
is anticipated in FY 2025-26. 
 
Company’s Overview 
 
The Company is a prominent NBFC in the retail finance industry in India. ISF Limited focuses 
on solving the MSME funding Challenges across spectrum. The Company satisfy the clients’ 
business expansion requirements, capital needs, diversification in another associated line of 
business, and seasonal stocking to seek the benefit of season sales. 
 
ISF Limited has finances Electric vehicles for commercial use, offers personal, micro enterprise 
and consumer durable loans for purchasing household appliances and electronic goods, and 
helps farmers by providing agriculture-oriented loans. 
 
Along with the flexible tenure for loan payment, company also assures quick processing with 
minimal paperwork. Funding to the customers is decided on certain eligibility criteria. 
 
The regulatory framework for NBFCs to introduce scale- based regulation came into effect 
from October 01, 2022. Under the new framework, NBFCs are placed in one of the four layers 
viz., Base Layer (BL), Middle Layer (ML), Upper Layer (UL) and a possible Top Layer (TL) 
based on their size, activity, and perceived risks. The new framework tightens regulatory 
oversight of the sector with stringent norms for NBFCs. The Company has been classified as 
Base Layer under Scale Based Regulatory Framework for NBFCs. 
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SWOT Analysis 
 
Strengths: 

1. Smoothly and easily catering the need of Customer via our loan products inclusive of 
Term Loan, E-Vehicle Loans, Consumer durable Loans. 

2. Understanding customer’s approach; 
3. Experienced senior management team; 
4. Better services to individual as well as corporate customers; 
5. Strong relationships with other NBFCs, institutions and investors; 
6. Easy and simplified sanction procedure and disbursement; 
7. Flexible operation & ability to innovate. 

Weakness:  

1. Strong and dynamic competitors; 
2. Weakness in urban markets due to disparities in public perception; 
3. Business and growth are directly linked with the GDP growth of the country. 

Opportunities: 

1. No entry barriers or low entry barriers 
2. Collaboration with Banks. 
3. Opportunities in home equity, personal finance, personal investment, etc. 
4. Securitizing to collect funds to generate asset growth 

Threats:  

1. Inadequate availability of bank finance and an upsurge in borrowing costs. 
2. Competition from captive finance companies, small banks, FinTechs and new entrants. 
3.  Increasing competition from global and local competitors in terms of product 

development and technology innovations, leaving very thin margins of error. 
4. External risks associated with liquidity stress, political uncertainties, fiscal slippage 

concerns, etc. 
5. Growing commoditization of financial products remains the toughest challenge for the 

Company. 

Segment–wise or product-wise performance 

Product Segment FY 2024-25 (in Rs.) Remarks 
Consumer Durable Loan 30,53,603.00 These loans were originated in the 

Financial Year 2024-25. Personal Loan 23,06,923.00 
Vehicle Loan 1,08,44,609.00 

 

Outlook 

The NBFC sector is expected to maintain a growth rate of 15–17% in FY 2025-26, supported by 
continued retail credit demand, digital penetration, and diversified funding channels. 
However, profitability will be influenced by funding costs, credit quality management, and 
regulatory compliance. Your Company will focus on prudent portfolio expansion, technology-
led efficiencies, and robust risk management to sustain growth while preserving asset quality. 
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Risks and Concerns 

Key risks include interest rate volatility, liquidity constraints, regulatory changes, and 
borrower repayment capacity. The Company has in place a comprehensive risk management 
framework to identify, assess, and mitigate credit, market, liquidity, legal and operational 
risks. 

Internal control systems and their adequacy 

The Company has carried out the internal audit in-house and has ensure that recording and 
reporting are adequate and proper, the internal controls exist in the system and that sufficient 
measures are taken to update the internal control system. The system also ensures that all 
transaction is appropriately authorized, recorded and reported. Exercises for safeguarding 
assets and protection against unauthorised use are undertaken from time to time. The 
Company’s audit Committee reviewed the internal control system. All efforts are being made 
to make the internal control systems more effective. All these measures are continuously 
reviewed by the management and as and when necessary, improvements are affected. 

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance 

The total revenue from operations of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 stood 
at Rs. 178.43 Lacs as against Rs. 202.20 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2024. The Company 
has incurred a loss of Rs. 0.65 Lacs for the Year ended March 31, 2025 as compared to the loss 
of Rs 73.88 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India. 

Human Resources  

Your Company recognises human capital as a key enabler for sustainable growth. In FY 2024-
25, initiatives were taken to strengthen employee engagement and performance-linked 
incentives. As of 31st March 2025, the Company had Nine (09) employees. 

Future Strategy 

The Board has determined the subsequent medium-term and long-term strategies to 
accomplish its corporate objectives within the upcoming 3-5 years: 

1. Conduct periodic evaluations of pandemic risks, Business Continuity plan, and liquidity 
management. 

2. Strengthen the leadership position in corporate financing. 
3. Concentrate efforts on digital initiatives to efficiently cater to customers and educate them 

on the digital payment of EMIs. 
4. Uphold customer loyalty through cultivating strong relationships and ensuring customer 

satisfaction. 
5. Employ data analytics in loan disbursement and recovery procedures. 
6. Enhance the loan portfolio’s quality. 
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Cautionary Statement 

This statement made in this section describes the Company’s objectives, projections, 
expectation and estimations which may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning 
of applicable securities laws and regulations. Forward– looking statements are based on 
certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee that 
these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized by the Company. Actual 
result could differ materially from those expressed in the statement or implied due to the 
influence of external factors which are beyond the control of the Company. The Company 
assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking 
statements on the basis of any subsequent developments. 

 

 

For and behalf of ISF Limited 

 

SD/-                                           SD/- 

Vishal Dang   Hargovind Sachdev 
Whole- time Director  Independent Director 
DIN: 07971525  DIN: 08105319      Date: 29.08.2025  

      Place: Delhi    
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Annexure-II 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT (Form MR-3) 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members  
ISF Limited 
CIN: L74899DL1988PLC076648 
Khasra No. 10/2, Samalka, Gurgaon Road, New Delhi, 110037 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by ISF Limited (hereinafter called the 
“Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, according to the 
provisions of: 
 
i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the 

extent of Regulation 76; 
 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; 

 
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):  
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015;  
 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements), 2015; 
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018;  
 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations,2021;  
 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; 
 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
 
(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018. 

(‘Buy-back Regulations’);  
 
(j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 

2018;. 
 
vi. Other laws specifically applicable to the company are as under and it has been confirmed 

& declared by the management that the company has duly complied with the said laws:- 
 

1. Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale 
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 

2. Applicable provisions of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 on Non- Banking 
Financial Companies  

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 
i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified 
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above without any observations. 
 
During the reporting period the Company has made all the requisite filings with Registrar of 
Companies, Delhi. 
 
We report that 
 
The position of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer was vacant during the period from 
December 24, 2024 to March 31, 2025. In this regard, we respectfully submit that there was a 
non-compliance with the provisions of Regulation 6 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and 
the Company had paid the penalty as levied thereon by BSE. 
 
 
 
 



                                                                      39 

We further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes (appointment or 
otherwise) in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period 
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or as agreed by the Board of 
Directors, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously/with 
majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of 
the Board, as the case may be. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period no specific events/ actions took place having a 
major bearing on the Company’s affair in pursuance of the above-mentioned laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 
 
For Anuj Gupta & Associates 
(Company Secretaries) 
 
 
SD/- 
CS Anuj Gupta 
(Proprietor) 
 
ICSI M. No.: A13025 
ICSI CoP No.: 13025 
 
UDIN: A031025G001063991 
ICSI Peer Review Certificate No. 1126/2021 
 
Date: 22-08-2025 
Place: New Delhi 



                                                                      40 

Annexure- A 
 
 
To, 
The Members 
ISF Limited 
CIN: L74899DL1988PLC076648 
Khasra No. 10/2, Samalka, Gurgaon Road, New Delhi, 110037 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 
 
(1) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.  
 
(2) We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test-check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We 
believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
(3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 
accounts of the Company.  
 
(4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.  
 
(5) The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedure on test-check basis.  
 
(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 
 
For Anuj Gupta & Associates 
(Company Secretaries) 
 
 
SD/- 
CS Anuj Gupta 
(Proprietor) 
 
ICSI M. No.: A13025 
ICSI CoP No.: 13025 
 
UDIN: A031025G001063991 
ICSI Peer Review Certificate No. 1126/2021 
 
Date: 22-08-2025 
Place: New Delhi 
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Annexure- III 
CERTIFICATE OF NON- DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Para C clause 10(i) of Schedule V of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015)  
 

To, 

The Members of ISF Limited 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of ISF Limited having CIN : L74899DL1988PLC076648 and having 
registered office at Khasra No. 10/2, Samalka, Gurgaon Road, New Delhi- 110037 (hereinafter 
referred to as The Company'), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing 
this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para - C Sub clause 
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information, explanations furnished to us by the 
Company & its Directors and verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 
status as available to the portal www.mca.gov.in) done by us, we hereby certify that none of 
the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending as 
on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or 
any such other Statutory Authority. 

Name of the Directors DIN Date of Appointment 
Vishal Dang 07971525 08/05/2020 
Gayathri Muttur Nagaraj 06742638 24/06/2022 
Hargovind Sachdev 08105319 24/06/2022 
Bhupendra Kaushik 07016552 24/08/2023 

 
 

For Anuj Gupta & Associates 
(Company Secretaries) 
 
 
SD/- 
CS Anuj Gupta 
(Proprietor) 
 
ICSI M. No.: A13025 
ICSI CoP No.: 13025 
 
UDIN: A031025G001063892 
ICSI Peer Review Certificate No. 1126/2021 
 
Date: 22-08-2025 
Place: New Delhi 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the Members of  
ISF Limited 
 
Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of ISF LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in 
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and its loss, changes in Equity 
and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the annual audited financial results 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
  
Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of Ind AS Financial Statements of current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in the 
forming our opinion there on, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our reports. 
 
Management’s Responsibilities for the Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including Other 
Comprehensive Income, changes in Equity and Cash Flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.  
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  
 
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including 
the disclosures and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outway the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give 
in the “Annexure-A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the 
extent applicable.  
 
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  
 
a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books. 

 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income and 
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.  

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025, 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 
B”.  

 

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down 
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details 
under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us. 
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind 

AS Financial Statements – Refer Note 22 to Ind AS Financial Statements  
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses.  

 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.  

 

iv. (i) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (“intermediaries”) with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

 
(ii) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (“funding parties”) with the understanding 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the funding party (““Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and  

 
(iii) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances. Nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement  

 
v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.  

 
vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 

software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which 
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the 
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit 
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, 
the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention. 

 
   For V S S A & Associates 
    Chartered Accountants 

            Firm Registration No 012421N 
 

 
     SD/- 

Place: New Delhi            Samir Vaid 
Dated: 20th May,2025                 Partner 
UDIN: 25091309BMJACT6563                                     Membership No. 091309 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements of ISF 
LIMITED (Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of 
our Report of even date) 
 
i. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. The company doesn’t have any intangible 
assets. Hence provisions of clauses (i)(a), (b) (c) and (d) of Paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.  
 
(b) The Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable 
interval during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification requiring 
adjustment of the same in the books of accounts. 
 
(c) The Company doesn’t own any immovable properties. Hence the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the 
Order are not applicable. 
 
(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment during the year. The Company 
doesn’t have any intangible assets or Right of use assets. 
 
(e) As per information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending 
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 
 
ii. a) The Company does not have any inventories. Hence the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order 
are not applicable.  
 

b) The Company does not have any borrowings from banks or financial institutions. Hence the 
provisions of clause3 (ii)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

  
iii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company has neither made any investments nor provided any guarantee or 
security during the year. However, unsecured loans and advances in the nature of loans have been 
granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and any other parties during the year. As 
the Company is a NBFC, whose principal business is to give loans, the provisions of clause (iii)(a) of the 
Order are not applicable.  
 
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, no investments have been made or guarantees provided or security have been given during the 
year. However, in respect of loans and advances granted in the nature of loans, the terms and conditions 
thereof are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 
 
c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans given where schedule of repayment has 
been stipulated, the repayments or receipts are generally regular. However, in respect of unsecured 
loans which are repayable on demand without any stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and 
interest, the regularity in repayment of principal and interest cannot be commented upon.  
 
d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans given where schedule of repayment has 
been stipulated, there are no amounts overdue outstanding for more than ninety days. However, in 
respect of loans which are repayable on demand without stipulation of schedule of repayment, our 
comments on amounts overdue for more than ninety days are not required 
 
e) As the Company is NBFC engaged in business of giving loans, hence the provisions of clause (iii)(e) 
of the Order are not applicable.  



                                                                      47 

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, no loans and advances in the nature of loans have been given during the year either repayable 
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Further no loans to promoters or 
a Related Party as defined in Section 2(76) of the Companies Act have been given during the year which 
are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 
 
 iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans 
given, the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. There 
are no investments, guarantees and security given by the Company to which provisions of Sections 185 
and 186 are applicable.  
 
v. As per information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, 
the Company has not accepted any deposits. Further there are no amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits. As per information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by Company Law 
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or other tribunal.  
 
vi. In our opinion and as per information and explanations given to us, maintenance of cost records has 
not been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act. 
 
vii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
Service Tax, Duty of Customs Tax, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues with 
the appropriate authorities during the year to the extent applicable. We are informed that there are no 
undisputed statutory dues as at the year end, outstanding for a period of more than six months from 
the date they become payable.  
 
b) In respect of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above, the following statutory dues have not 
been deposited on account of dispute, details thereof are given below: 
 

Nature Of dues Amount (Rs Lakhs) Period to which 
amount relates 

Forum where the 
dispute is pendimg 

Income Tax 
Income Tax  
Withholding tax 
 

2.67 
3.15 
1.43 

2008-2009 
2020-2021 
2020-2021 and prior 
years 
 

Assessing Officers 
CPC Bengaluru 
Assessing Officer: TDS 

 
 
viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and on the basis of information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), which is not 
recorded in the books of accounts. 
 
ix. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company does not have any borrowings from banks, financial institutions and 
Government. Hence our comments on defaults in repayment of loans or interest thereon are not 
required.  
 
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, the Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other 
lender.  
 
c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Hence our comments on application of the same 
are not required.  
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d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, funds been raised by the Company on short term basis in the form of unsecured loans from 
related parties and others have not been used for long term purposes.  
 
e) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, the Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Hence the provisions of 
clause 3 (ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable.  
 
f) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, the Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Hence the provisions of 
clause 3 (ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
x. a) According to the records of the Company examined by us, the Company has not raised any money 
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.  
 
b) According to the records of the Company examined by us the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or 
optionally convertible) during the year.  
 
xi. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, no fraud by the Company and fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year.  
 
b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government.  
 
c) The Company has neither informed us nor we have come across any whistle-blower complaints 
received during the year by the Company.  
 
xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clauses 3 (xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 
 
xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with 
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable and 
the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc, as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.  
 
xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has appointed a firm of Chartered Accountants to do internal 
audit periodically. The internal audit system is commensurate with the size and nature of business of 
the Company. Further, the reports of the internal auditors during the period under audit were 
considered by us.  
 
xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of clause 
3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  
 
xvi. a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) which 
is obtained.  
 
b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking 
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Financial business without a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India. No 
Housing Finance Activities have been conducted by the Company during the year.  
 
c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as 
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c) 
and (d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 
xvii. According to the records of the Company examined by us, the Company has incurred cash losses 
in the current financial year though not in the immediately preceding financial year.  
 
xviii. There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year.  
 
xix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company and on the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected 
date of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans, no material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report that Company is capable of meeting 
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. 
 
xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records, the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the 
Company. Hence our comments on clauses (xx)(a) and (b) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not required. 
 
xxi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company does 
not prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Hence our comments on qualifications or adverse 
remarks are not required. 
 
 
 
 
 

   For V S S A & Associates 
   Chartered Accountants 

          Firm Registration No 012421N 
 

 
     SD/- 

Place: New Delhi            CA Samir Vaid 
Dated: 20th May,2025                 Partner 
UDIN: 25091309BMJACT6563                                     Membership No. 091309 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of ISF 
LIMITED 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ISF LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the 
ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial 
Statements for external purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A 
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 
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made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
31st March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 
 
 
 
 
 

   For V S S A & Associates 
    Chartered Accountants 

           Firm Registration No 012421N 
 

 
     SD/- 

Place: New Delhi            CA Samir Vaid 
Dated: 20.05.2025                 Partner 
UDIN: 25091309BMJACT6563                                     Membership No. 091309 
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Financial Statement 
ISF LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2025 
(In Rupees Lakhs) 

  Particulars Note  
No.  

 

As at                    
31-03-

2025  

As at                    
31-03-2024 

1 Financial Assets 
 

     
  (i) Cash and cash equivalents 2 3.64 

 
54.99   

  (ii) Loans 3 1647.73 
 

1746.08   

  (iii) Trade Receiables 4 7.01 
 

0   

  (iv)Other Financial Assets-Security Deposit 2.00 1660.38 0.72 1801.79 

2 Non Financial Assets 
    

  

  (i) Advances 5 22.58 
 

20.31   

  (ii) Current Tax Asset 6 3.92 
 

9.09   

  (iii) Deferred  Tax Asset 7 18.23 
 

18.00   

  (iv) Property, Plant & Equipment 8 0.49 45.22 0.00 47.40 

  Total Assets 
 

  1705.60   1849.19 
  

     
  

  LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
    

  

1  Financial Liabilities 
    

  

  (i) Trade payables 9 
   

  

  a) Total Outstanding Dues of 
Micro Enrterprises and Small 
Enterprises  

 
0.00 

 
0.00   

  b) Total outstanding Dues of 
Creditors other than Micro 
Enterprises and small Enterprises  

 
5.15 

 
3.50   

  (ii) Borrowings 10 340.35 
 

493.32   

  (iii) Other financial liabilities 11 18.03 
 

9.64   

  
   

363.53 
 

506.47 

2 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    
  

  Equity 
    

  

  i) Equity Share Capital 12 950.00 
 

950.00   

  ii) Other Equity 13 392.07 1342.07 392.72 1342.72 

  Total Equity and Liabilities 
  

1705.60 
 

1849.19 
      

  

See accompanying notes to the financial 
Statements 
 

As per our report of even date attached 
 
For V S S A & Associates           For & on behalf of the Board 
(Firm Registration No 012421N) 
Chartered Accountants 
 
SD/-              SD/-       SD/-    SD/- 
CA Samir Vaid                  Gayathri Muttur 
Partner      Vishal Dang      Hargovind Sachdeva Nagaraj  
M. No. 091309     Whole time Director    Director   Director 
     DIN:07971525      DIN: 08105319    DIN:06742638 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 20-05-2025    SD/-         SD/-    SD/- 

Bhupendra Kaushik     Vijay Gupta   Anil Kumar Verma 
Director         CFO    CEO 
DIN:07016552        PAN: ADZPG3550F  PAN: ACQPV9500Q 
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ISF LIMITED 

   STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025 

  
   

(Rupees in Lacs) 

  Particulars Note  
No. 

Year Ended                
31-03-2025 

Year Ended               
31-03-2024 

I Revenue from Operations 14 178.43 202.20 

II Other Income 15 0.40 0.13 

III Total Income (I+II) 
 

178.83 202.33 

IV EXPENSES 
  

  

  Finance costs 16 34.79 27.45 

  Employee benefits expense 17 34.85 18.59 

  Other expenses 18 109.97 248.12 

  Depreciation 19 0.09 0.00 

  Total Expenses  
 

179.70 294.15 

V Profit/(Loss) before tax 
 

(0.88) (91.82) 

VI Tax expense:   
 

  

  Current  
 

0.00 0.00  

  Earlier Year 
 

0.00  (0.07) 

  Deferred tax  
 

0.23 18.00 

VII Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) 
 

(0.65) (73.88) 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income 
  

  

    (i) Items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss 

  
  

   
  

  

   (ii) Income tax relating to items 
that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

 
0.00 0.00 

  Total Other Comprehensive 
Income 

 
0.00 0.00 

  
   

  

IX Total Comprehensive Income 
(VII+VIII) 

 
(0.65) (73.88) 

  
   

  

X Earning Per Equity Share 25 
 

  

         Basic (Rs.) 
 

(0.0007) (0.0778) 

         Diluted (Rs.) 
 

(0.0007) (0.0778) 

See accompanying notes to the financial 
Statements 
 

As per our report of even date attached 
 
For V S S A & Associates           For & on behalf of the Board 
(Firm Registration No 012421N) 
Chartered Accountants 
 
SD/-              SD/-       SD/-    SD/- 
CA Samir Vaid                  Gayathri Muttur 
Partner      Vishal Dang      Hargovind Sachdeva Nagaraj  
M. No. 091309     Whole time Director    Director   Director 
     DIN:07971525      DIN: 08105319    DIN:06742638 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 20-05-2025    SD/-         SD/-    SD/- 

Bhupendra Kaushik     Vijay Gupta   Anil Kumar Verma 
Director         CFO    CEO 
DIN:07016552        PAN: ADZPG3550F  PAN: ACQPV9500Q 
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ISF LIMITED 

      
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025    

     
(In Rupees in lacs) 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPTAL 

As at April 1 2023                 950.00  

Changes in equity share capital                           -    

As at March 31, 2024                 950.00  

Changes in equity share capital                           -    

As at March 31, 2025                 950.00  

      

B. OTHER EQUITY      
                                         Reserves and Surplus   Total 

Capital 
Reserve 

General 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earnings 

Reserve 
Fund 

Balance as at April 1,2023                       
75.00  

                       
18.91  

                       
285.12  

              
87.57  

                   
466.60  

Addition during the year                              
-    

     -                        
-    

Profit for the year                              
-    

 .  -73.88                       
-    

           -73.88  

Other Comprehensive income for the 
year 

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                 
-    

                     
-    

                      
-    

Total comprehensive Income for the 
year 

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                 
-    

                     
-    

                      
-    

Deletion during the year                                      
-    

                        
-    

Balance as at March 31,2024 75.00  18.91  211.24  87.57             392.72  

Addition during the year                            
-    

  

Profit for the year -     -    -0.65  -                 -0.65  

Other Comprehensive Income for the 
year 

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                 
-    

                     
-    

                      
-    

Total comprehensive Income for the 
year 

-       -0.65  -                  -0.65  

Deletion during the year         -        

Balance as at March 31,2025 75.00  18.91  210.59  87.57              
392.07  

      
As per our report of even date attached  

    
 

For V S S A & Associates           For & on behalf of the Board 
(Firm Registration No 012421N) 
Chartered Accountants 
 
SD/-              SD/-       SD/-    SD/- 
CA Samir Vaid                  Gayathri Muttur 
Partner      Vishal Dang      Hargovind Sachdeva Nagaraj  
M. No. 091309     Whole time Director    Director   Director 
     DIN:07971525      DIN: 08105319    DIN:06742638 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 20-05-2025    SD/-         SD/-    SD/- 

Bhupendra Kaushik     Vijay Gupta   Anil Kumar Verma 
Director         CFO    CEO 
DIN:07016552        PAN: ADZPG3550F  PAN: ACQPV9500Q 
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 ISF LIMITED 
     
   CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March 2025 

   
(Rupees in Lakhs)  

    Year Ended Year Ended 
    31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
 

 
     
  Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax Exceptional & Extraordinary items (0.88) (91.82) 
  Adjustments for:                   -                  -    
  Other Comprehensive Income                   -                  -    
  Depreciation                 0.09                -    
  (Profit)/loss on sale of fixed Assets & Assets Discarded (Net)                   -                  -    
  Interest Paid 34.79           27.45  
  Interest received (178.43) (202.20) 
  Operating Profit before working capital changes (144.42) (266.57) 
  Adjustments for:   
  Trade and Other Receivebles 92.73  (205.25) 
  Trade Payable and Other Liabilities 10.03  8.60  
  Interest Received 178.43  202.20  
  Cash Generated from Operations 136.77 (261.02) 
  Direct Taxes Paid (including deferred tax) 0.23                17.93  

  Cash Flow before extraordinary items 137.00 (243.09) 
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:   

  Purchase of Fixed Assets, Including capital work in progress (0.58)               -    
  Purchase of Investments                   -                  -    
  Sale of Fixed Assets                   -                  -    
  Interest received                   -                  -    
  Net Cash used in Investing Activities (0.58)                   -    

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:   
  Net proceeds of Short Term Borrowings (152.97) 309.80  
  Interest Paid (34.79) (27.45) 
  Net Cash from Financing Activities (187.76)               282.35  
  Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (51.35) 39.26  
  Cash and Cash Equivalents as at Ist April, Opening Balance 54.99 15.73  
  Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March, Closing Balance 3.64 54.99  
  Note: Figures in brackets represent outflow. (51.35) 39.26  
     
   

 
 

As per our report of even date attached 
 
 
 
For V S S A & Associates           For & on behalf of the Board 
(Firm Registration No 012421N) 
Chartered Accountants 
 
SD/-              SD/-       SD/-    SD/- 
CA Samir Vaid                  Gayathri Muttur 
Partner      Vishal Dang      Hargovind Sachdeva Nagaraj  
M. No. 091309     Whole time Director    Director   Director 
     DIN:07971525      DIN: 08105319    DIN:06742638 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 20-05-2025    SD/-         SD/-    SD/- 

Bhupendra Kaushik     Vijay Gupta   Anil Kumar Verma 
Director         CFO    CEO 
DIN:07016552        PAN: ADZPG3550F  PAN: ACQPV9500Q 
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ISF LIMITED 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 

1. (A) CORPORATE INFORMATION 
ISF LIMITED (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in India with its 
Registered Office at Delhi and is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The company is 
engaged in the business of Non- Banking Financial Company. 
 
1. (B) ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial 
statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the 
periods presented in these financial statements. 
 
(a) (i)Statement of compliance 
The Financial Statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act) including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
the format prescribed by Schedule III (as amended) vide MCA Notification GSR 207(E) dated 
24.03.2021. 
 
(b) (ii)Basis for preparation 
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the 
exception of certain assets and liabilities carried at fair values by Ind AS. The Assets and 
Liabilities have been classified as Current/Non Current as per the Companies normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on 
the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 
12 months for the purpose of Current/Non Current classification of assets and liabilities. The 
material accounting policy information used in preparation of the audited standalone 
financial statements have been discussed in the respective notes. 
 
(c) Property, plant and equipment-Tangible Assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and 
rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes 
purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its 
working condition for its intended use, net changes on foreign exchange contacts and 
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets. 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are 
incurred. 
 
Depreciation 
i. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the 

assets as per the rates in the manner prescribed under the Schedule II to the Companies Act 
2013. 

ii. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying 
amount and such gains or losses are recognized as income or expense in the statement of 
profit and loss. 
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iii. Cost of items of Property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use as on the balance 
sheet date is disclosed as capital work in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of 
Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as 
Capital Advance under Other non-current assets. 
 

(d) Impairment 
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount 
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Non financial assets 
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end 
of each reporting period. 
 
(e) Leases 
In accordance with Ind AS 116, as lessee for lease with a term of more than 12 months, the 
Company recognises a ‘right-of-use’ asset at cost for the lease term at the commencement date 
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make future lease payments. The ‘Right-of-
use’ asset is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date over the 
shorter of lease term or useful life of ‘right-of-use’ asset. The lease payment is discounted using 
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as there is no interest rate implicit in the lease. Short 
term lease and lease of low value is treated as expense on straight line basis or other systematic 
basis over the lease term. 
 
(f) Financial Instruments 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the relevant instrument. Since the transaction price does not 
differ significantly from the fair value of the financial asset or financial liability, the transaction 
price is assumed to be the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to 
or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities. 
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized using trade date accounting. 
 
i. Financial Assets 
Financial assets include Loans, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and Cash Equivalents etc 
which are classified for measurement at amortised cost. 
Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the 
purpose for which the assets were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets 
depends on such classification. 
 
Impairment: 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial 
assets) are tested for impairment based on available evidence or information. Expected credit 
losses are assessed and loss allowances recognized if the credit quality of the financial asset 
has deteriorated significantly since initial recognition. 
 
De-recognition: 
Financial assets are derecognized when the right to receive cash flow from the assets has 
expired, or has been transferred and the company has transferred substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership. 
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Income recognition: 
Interest income on loans is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss using the effective 
interest method on time proportion basis. 
 
ii. Financial Liabilities: 
 
Borrowings, Trade Payables and other Financial Liabilities are initially recognized at the value 
of the respective contractual obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, wherever applicable. 
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points 
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and 
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability. 
 
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the 
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to short maturity of these instruments. 
 
De-recognition: 
 
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the 
contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled and on expiry. 
 
(g) Revenue 
 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is 
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable 
taking into account contractually defined terms. 
 
i. Interest Income 
 
Interest income is accrued on time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding 
and the effective interest rate applicable. 
 
(h) Cash and cash Equivalents 
 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, short term balances (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from date of acquisition). 
 
(i) Taxes on income 
 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax. 
Current tax charge is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 
reported in the Statement of profit and loss because Some items of income or expense are 
taxable or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or deductible. The company’s 
liability for current tax is calculated using Indian tax rates and laws that have been enacted by 
the reporting date. 
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Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by 
the same taxation authority. 
 
The company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate. 
 
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in the future arising from 
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance 
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets 
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset realized, 
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are off set against each other and the resultant net 
amount is presented in the balance sheet if and only when the company currently has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the current income tax assets and liabilities. 
 
Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is 
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 
 
(j) Employee Benefits 
 
(i) Short term employee Benefits 
 
Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is 
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
 
(ii) Post Employment Benefits 
 
Defined Contribution Plans 
The company’s defined contribution plans are employees provident fund and employees 
pension scheme (under the provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 1952) since the company has no further obligation beyond making the 
contributions. The company’s contributions to these plans are charged to the Statement of 
Profit and loss as incurred. 
 
Defined Benefits Plans 
Liability for Defined Benefit plans is provided on the basis of actual valuation as at the balance 
sheet date. 
 
Gratuity 
The provision for Gratuity is made as at the balance sheet date on actual calculation. 
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(k) Earnings Per Share 
 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to the 
owners of company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for 
all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion 
of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without 
a corresponding change in resources. For the purposes of calculating diluted earnings per 
share the profit for the period attributable to the owners of the company and the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. 
 
(l) Exceptional items 
 
When items of income or expense are of such nature, size and incidence that their disclosure 
is necessary to explain the performance of the company for the year, the company makes a 
disclosure of the nature and amount of such items separately under the head “exceptional 
items.” 
 
(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities 
 
A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event, the company has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognized at the 
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet 
date. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre tax rate that reflects, when appropriate the risks specific to the liability. 
 
A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present 
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present 
obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant 
provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. 
 
(n) Dividends 
 
Dividend proposed (including income tax thereon) is recognized in the period in which 
interim dividends are approved by the Board of Directors or in respect of final dividend when 
approved by shareholders. 
 
(o) Borrowing cost 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying 
assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily 
takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred. 
 
(p) Use of Estimates and Critical accounting Judgements 
 
The preparation of Financial Statements is in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles which requires management to make estimates and assumptions. 
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The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical experience, opinions of 
experts and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. 
Significant judgements and estimates are made relating to impairment of Property, Plant and 
Equipments, recognition of provisions and exposure of contingent liabilities relating to 
pending litigations or other outstanding claims etc. 
 
(q) Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new Standards or amendments to the existing 
Standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 
For the year ended March 31,2025, MCA has notified Ind AS-117 “Insurance Contracts” and 
amendments to Ind AS-116 “Leases” relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to 
the Company w.e.f April 1,2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and 
based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its 
financial statements. 
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 ISF LIMITED     

 

 

   
(In Rupees 
Lakhs) 

 

 

 

As at                    
31-03-2025 

 

As at                    
31-03-2024 

 

 

    
2 Cash and cash equivalents 

    
(a) Balances with Banks:     

 

In Current accounts (including Rupees 0.46 Lakhs 
unconfirmed)  3.28  54.63 

  In Equity warrant account (unconfirmed)  0.19  0.19 
(b) Cash on Hand  (as certified)  0.17  0.17 

 

 

 3.64  54.99 

 

 

    
3 Loans 

    

 
Unsecured considered good: 

    

 
Related Parties 

 
160.00 

 
301.11 

 
Others 

 
1487.73 

 
1444.96 

 

 

 1647.73  1746.08 

 

 

    
4 Trade Receiables 

    

 
More than Six Months 

 
           6.91  

  

 
     Others 

 
           0.11  

  

 

 

 7.01                                -    
 
Trade receiable ageing Schedule the year ended as on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 

 Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of payment# 

  

 Less than 6 
months 

6 months -1 
year 

 
1-2 Years 

 
2-3 years 

 
More than 3 
years 

Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables considered 
good 

0.11 6.91 - - - 7.01 

 - - - - - - 
(ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 - - - - - - 
(iii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables credit 
impaired 

- - - - - - 

 - - - - - - 
(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables considered 
good 

- - - - - - 

 - - - - - - 
(v) Disputed Trade 
Receivables which have 
significant 
increase in credit risk 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 - - - - - - 
(vi) Disputed - - - - - - 
Total 0.11 6.91 - - - 7.01 
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5 Advances     
 Unsecured considered good     
 

 
    

 Advances against supply of goods & services  19.40  18.98 
 Advancs to Statutory Authorities  3.19  1.33 

 

 

 22.58  20.31 
6 Current Tax Asset     

 Advance Tax & Tds( Net of Provision)  3.92  9.09 

 

 

 3.92  9.09 

 
     

7 Deferred Tax Asset (net)     

 

Difference between book depreciation and 
depreciation as per Income tax rules  -0.01   

 Unabsorbed Income Tax Loss Carried forward   18.24  18.00 

 

 

 18.23  18.00 

      

ISF LIMITED 

NOTE 8- FIXED ASSETS       (Rupees in lacs) 

PARTICULARS 

Gross Block Depreciation/ Amortisation Net Block 

As at 
1st 

April, 
2024 

Additions 
during 

the year 

Deduction 
Adjustments 

As at 
31st 

March, 
2025 

As at 
1st 

April, 
2024 

For 
the 
year 

Deductions 
during the 

year 

As at 
31st 

March, 
2025 

As at 
31st 

March, 
2025 

As at 
31st 

March, 
2024 

 

 

TANGIBLE 
ASSETS                   

 

Computer 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.09 0.49 0.00 
 

  0.00 0.58 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.09 0.49 0.00 
 

                    
 

Previous year  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   
 

 
 

9 Trade Payables     

 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer Note 
28)  0.00  0.00 

 Others  5.15  3.50 

 

 

 5.15  3.50 
Trade Payables ageing Schedule (Due for payment for the year ended as on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 

 Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 year More than 3 years Total 

(i) MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
      

0.00 
(ii) Others  

0.00 
 

0.00 
 

0.00 
 

0.00 
 
0.00 

 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
  

0.00 
 

0.00 
 

0.00 
 

0.00 
 
0.00 

(iv)Disputed dues - Others  
0.00 

 
0.00 

 
0.00 

 
0.00 

 
0.00 

 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Add :Accrued Expenses     5.15 
     (3.50) 
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ISF LIMITED 
    

  

 
(In Rupees Lakhs) 

 

 

As at                    
31-03-2025 

 

As at                    
31-03-2024 

10 Borrowings      
Loans repayable on demand:      
         From related parties*  331.27  484.24  
         From a Company  9.08  9.08  
   340.35  493.32 

 
*Including Rupees 6.24 Lakhs due to an ex Director 

11 Other Financial Liabilities      
      Accrued salaries and benefits  2.46  2.37  
      Security Deposits from Customers  13.65  6.75  
      Statutory dues  1.92  0.52  
      Advance from Customers  0.00  

 
  

 
18.03 

 
9.64 

 
     

12 Equity Share Capital 
     

Authorised Share Capital      
600000000 (600000000) Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each 

 

6000.00 

 

6000.00 

  
 6000.00  6000.00  

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up      
95000000(95000000) Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each 
fully paid   

950.00 
 

950.00 

  
 950.00  950.00   
    

The Company has only one class of issued shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs 1 each. Each holder of 
Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share held. 
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 
approval of Shareholders in the ensuing General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. 
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of 
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently. The 
distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Shareholders. 
 
The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:- 

NAME OF 
SHAREHOLDER 

 As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024 
No. of shares % held No. of 

shares 
% held 

Prem Kumar Jain   8789911.00 9.25 8789910.00 9.25 
Kamal Kant Dang   5727384.00 6.03 5727384.00 6.03 
Vishal Dang   7184910.00 7.56 7184910.00 7.56 
 
NAME OF 
PROMOTER 

As at 31st 
March, 2025 

% Change As at 31st 
March, 2024 

% Change 

No. of 
shares 

% held  No. of shares % 
held 

 

Udayjit Singh 19990 0.02 0.00 19990.00 0.02 0.00 
NEELAM TANEJA 490000 0.52 0.00 490000.00 0.52 0.00 
SIMKA HOTELS 
AND RESORTS 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

95590 0.10 0.00 95590.00 0.10 0.00 

 
Reconciliation of the Equity shares outstanding 
 
Particulars 

 As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024 
No. of shares Amount (In 

Rupees Lakhs) 
No. of shares Amount (In 

Rupees Lakhs) 
Balance at the beginning of the year Issued 
during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

95000000.00 950.00 95000000.00 950.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
95000000.00 950.00 95000000.00 950.00 
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ISF LIMITED 
 

(In Rupees Lakhs) 
 

                        Year Ended    
                          31-03-2025 

 Year Ended               
31-03-2024 

13 Other Equity  
   

 
General Reserve  

   
 

As per last Balance Sheet  18.91 
 

18.91  
Capital Reserve  

   
 

Equity warrants forfeited  75.00 
 

75.00  
Reserve Fund  

   
 

As per last Balance Sheet 87.57 
 

87.57 
 

 
Add transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss     -   87.57 0.00 87.57   

 
   

 
Retained Earnings  

   
 

As per last Balance Sheet 211.24 
 

285.12 
 

 
Profit/(Loss) for the year (0.65) 

 
-73.88 

 
 

Other comprehensive income for the year net of 
income tax        -   

 
0.00 

 

  
 210.59  

 
211.24 

 
 

Less transferred to Reserve Fund        -   210.59 0.00 211.24   
 

   
  

  392.07   392.72 
14 Revenue From Operations 

 
  

  Income from Financing Operations 
 

  

  Interest Income                              171.11 189.67 

  Processing Fee and Due Diligence Charges 7.32 12.53 

  
 

178.43 202.20 

15 Other Income 
 

  

  Interest on Income Tax Refund                                 0.40 0.00 

  Bad debts Recovered                                  0.00 0.13 

  
 

0.40 0.13 

16 Finance Costs 
 

  

  Interest on unsecured loans                               34.79 27.43 

  Interest (Others)                                 0.00 0.02 

  
 

34.79 27.45 

17 Employee Benefit Expense 
 

  

  Salary, Wages, Allowances and Bonus                                34.85 18.59 

  
 

                               34.85 18.59 

18 Other  Expenses 
 

  

  Rent               6.73 3.14 

  Documentation Charges               6.13 0.12 

  Payment to the Auditors: 
 

  

        Statutory Audit               0.75 0.40 

        For Other Services               0.42 0.20 

  Roc Fee               0.02 22.50 

  Legal & Professional Charges               8.66 8.99 

  Bad debts written off             71.45 193.01 

  Listing Fee              9.67 12.53 

  Travelling & Conveyance              0.30 3.37 

  Miscellaneous Expenses              5.84 3.86 

  
 

         109.97 248.12 

19 Depreciation 
 

  

  Depreciation              0.09 0.00 

  
 

             0.09 0.00 
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ISF LIMITED   

   
20 a) Financial Instruments   
 (In Rupees Lakhs) 

  As at March 31 2025 As at March 31 2024 

Financial assets at fair value    

Loans                       1,647.73                        1,746.08  

Cash and cash equivalents                               3.64                             54.99  

Total financial assets                       1,651.37                        1,801.07  

     

Financial liabilities at fair value    

Borrowings                          340.35                           493.32  

Trade payables                               5.15                                3.50  

Other Financial Liabilities including Security Deposit                            18.03                                9.64  

Total financial liabilities                          363.53                           506.47  

   
b) Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
The Company determines the fair value of its financial instruments on the basis of the following hierarchy: 
 
Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets are determined on the basis of quoted price for 
identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques 
based on observable market data. 
 
Level 3: The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using inputs that are 
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair value of investment in unquoted equity shares is determined 
using discounted cash flow technique. 
 
The carrying amounts of all financial instruments are considered to be the same as their fair values. 
 
c) Financial Risk Management 
 
In the course of its business, the Company is exposed to a number of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk etc. This note 
presents the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its financial risk and capital. 
 
i)Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers. 
 
Trade and other receivables 
 
The Company's Trade Receivables are largely from Financing operations. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced 
mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 
 
The Company manages credit risk through credit approvals and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to 
which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. 
 
 
ii)Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk refers to risk that the Company may encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations associated with financial 
liabilities that are settled in cash or other financial assets. The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure that 
sufficient liquidity is maintained on an ongoing basis to meet operational needs. The Company manages the liquidity risk by 
planning the investments in a manner such that the desired quantum of funds could be made available to meet any of the business 
requirements within a reasonable period of time. 
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Exposure to Liquidity Risk 
 
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and 
undiscounted and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements. 
 

As at March 31, 2025 
Carrying 
Amount 

Contractual Cash Flows 

Total 1 year or less Beyond 1 year 

Non derivative financial liability         

Borrowings      340.35         340.35        340.35            -    

Trade payables and other payables           5.15              5.15            5.15            -    

Security deposits         13.65              6.75            6.75            -    

Other Financial Liabilities           4.38              4.38            4.38            -    

     

As at March 31, 2024 
Carrying 
Amount 

Contractual Cash Flows 

Total 1 year or less Beyond 1 year 

Non derivative financial liability         

Borrowings      493.32         493.32        493.32            -    

Trade payables and other payables           3.50              3.50            3.50            -    

Security deposits           6.75              6.75            6.75            -    

Other Financial Liabilities           2.89              2.89            2.89            -    
 
21. a)  Tax Expense   

i) Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss                                                                
(In Rupees Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Year ended March 

31,2025 
Year ended March 

31, 2024 

Current tax     

Current tax on taxable income for the year                               -                                  -    

Total Current tax expense                               -                                  -    

      

Deferred tax     

Deferred tax charge/(credit)                         -0.23                        -18.00  

MAT credit (taken)/utilized                               -                                  -    

      

Total deferred income tax expense/(benefit)                         -0.23                        -18.00  

      

Earlier Year Tax Adjustements                               -                              0.07  

Deferred tax charge/(credit)                                 -    

MAT credit (taken)/utilized                                 -    

      

Income Tax Expenses reported in Profit & Loss                         -0.23                        -17.93  

ii) Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income                                                          
 

(In Rupees Lakhs) 

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss Year ended march 
31,2025 

Year ended march 
31,2024 

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans                               -                                  -    

Tax Expense                               -                                  -    

Net of Tax                               -                                  -    
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iii)Reconciliation of Tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31st, 2025 
 

  (In Rupees Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended march 
31,2025 

Year ended march 
31,2024 

Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the company            26.00%                     26.00% 

Accounting profit before Income Tax                         -0.88                        -91.82  

Current tax expense on profit before tax expense at the 
enacted income tax rate in India                         -0.23                        -23.87  

      

Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) 
in calculating taxable income 

    

Expenses not allowable/on payment in income Tax                               -                              5.87  

Income exempted from taxes                 -                    -    

Others including tax adjustments earlier years                               -                              0.07  

Total income tax expense/(credit)                         -0.23                        -17.93  

 
22.  Contingent Liabilities & Commitments 
       (To the extent not provided for)   

 
 

(In Rupees Lakhs) 
  

Contingent Liabilities As at       As at 

  
 31-03-2025 31-03-2024 

  
 
Outstanding Capital Commitment (Net of Advance) 

  

 
a)                        -     -  

 
b) Disputed Income Tax                   5.83                    5.53  

 
c) withholding Tax (TDS)                 1.43                    1.43  

    d) Others- Vehicle repossession                   7.61                    7.61  

 
23. Some of the Sundry Debtors, Advances including Deposits and Current Liabilities are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. 
 
24. Ind AS 116 is not applicable as the underlying asset is perceived to be of low value and yielding low lease rentals. Hence on 
materiality considerations, Right of use Assets have not been created. 
 
25. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
 
Profit/(Loss) attributable to the Equity Share Holders             (A)          (0.65)        (73.88)  
Basic/Weighted average No. of Equity Shares outstanding    (B)          950.00       950.00 
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.)            1.00          1.00 
Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs.) (A/B)           (0.0007)      (0.0778) 
 
26. Related Party Disclosures under Ind AS 24 
a)  List of Related Parties (As identified by the Management) 
i)   Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives :- Ajivika Finance Limited 
ii)  Key Management Personnel:- Vishal Dang, Hargovind Sachdev, Gayathri Muttur Nagaraj, Bhupendra Kaushik, Anil Kumar 

Verma, Manisha Saxena (till December 23, 2024), Vijay Gupta 
 

b) Transactions with Related Parties  
 

(Rupees in lakhs) 
 

Nature of Transactions 

Enterprises owned 
or significantly 

influenced by key 
Management 

Personnel 

Key Management 
Personnel and their 

relatives  

    

i) EXPENSES 
  

 
Remuneration toKey Managerial Personnel * - 25.74 

  
(-) (13.95)  

Directors sitting fees 
 

3.15 
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(-) (2.10)  

Interest Paid 
 

34.79 
  

0.00 (27.43) 
 

Interest income on loan given                  33.56                                -   
  

(33.83) (-)  
* Excluding Gratuity 

  

    

ii) UNSECURED LOANS 
  

 
Accepted/(Repaid)(Net)(Including TDS &Interest accrued) 0.00  (115.00)   

    (0.00) (269.80) 
Given/(Received back)(Net)            (140.00)                            0.00 

    (301.11)                                (-) 
           -                                   - 

iii) BALANCES AS ON 31-MARCH-2025 
 
Unsecured Loans taken outstanding (Including Interest Accrued)           0.00                          325.03 

(0.0)                          (478.00) 
 
Unsecured Loans given outstanding            160.00                           0.00 
              (301.11)                          (0.00) 
Creditors                   -                           2.23 
                                     (-)                          (1.20) 
 
Note: Unsecured loans outstanding at the year end exlude Rs 9.08 lakhs due to a company and Rs 6.24 lakhs due to an ex director who 
have ceased to be related parties. 
In respect of above parties there is no provision for doubtful debts as on 31.03.2025 and no amount has been written off or written back 
during the year in respect of debts due from/to them. 
 
27 Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on "Operating Segment" the Company's business activity falls within a single 

operating segment, namely Financing. Accordingly, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 are not applicable. 
 
28 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

On the basis of confirmation obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro Small 

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and based on the information available with  

the Company, the following are the details:   

   
(Rupees in lakhs )   

  2024-25 2023-24 
  

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid                    -    
                          
-   

  

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid                    -    
                          
-   

  

(iii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small                     -    
                          
-   

  

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along-with the amount   
  

of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the   
  

period   
  

(iv) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment                    -    
                          
-   

  

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period)   
  

but without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium   
  

Enterprises Act, 2006   
  

(v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid                    -    
                          
-   

  

(vi) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until                    -                               

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small   
  

Enterprises 
 
 
 
    



                                                                      70 

29 
 

Financial Ratios Formula 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
 

(a) Capital to Risk weighted 
assets ratio(CRAR) 

Tier I Capital+Tier II 
Capital/Risk weighted assets  

0.77 0.73 

 
(b) Tier I CRAR Tier I Capital/Risk weighted 

assets  
0.77 0.73 

 
(c) Tier II CRAR Tier II Capital /Risk weighted 

assets  
NA NA 

30 The Company does not have any borrowings from Banks and Financial Institutions at the balance sheet date.    

31 The Company does not own any Immovable Property (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).    

32   The Company has not revalued its property/Plant/Equipment during the year.   
33 During the Year, No Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related 

parties (as defined under the Companies Act 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on 
demand or without specifying and terms or period of repayment.    

34 The Company does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the 
Rules made thereunder.   

35 The Company does not have any borrowings from Banks/Financial Institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 
36 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any Bank/Financial Institution/other lender.   
37 The Company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013/ Section 

560 of Companies Act 1956.   
38 The Company does not have any borrowings from Banks/Financial Institutions for which charges/ satisfaction are to be 

registered with the Registrar of Companies.    
39 The Company does not have any layers prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act, read with Companies (Restriction 

on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.    
40 No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the competent authority in terms of Section 230 to 237 of Companies Act, 

2013.    
41 The Company has not advanced/loaned/invested funds(either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 

kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (intermediaries) with understanding (whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall   
i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any other matter whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
ii. Provide any guarantee or security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

    
42 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 

the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall   
i.  Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any matter whatsoever by or on behalf of 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or   
ii.    Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries.  
   

43 The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.    

44 The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial year.   
45 Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever found necessary. Figures in brackets above are in respect 

of previous year.  
 
 
As per our report of even date attached 
 
 

 
For V S S A & Associates           For & on behalf of the Board 
(Firm Registration No 012421N) 
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